
 

 

  
MISSION STATEMENT: “The City of Mound, through teamwork and cooperation, provides, at a reasonable 
cost, quality services that respond to the needs of all citizens, fostering a safe, attractive and flourishing 
community.” 

MOUND PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/RESCHEDULED MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER  18, 2025, 6:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MOUND CENTENNIAL BUILDING 
5341 MAYWOOD ROAD, MOUND, MN 

    
1. Call to Order  Pages 
2. Roll Call  
3. Review and approval of agenda, including any amendments      
4.   Review and action  
  A.  September 2, 2025 regular meeting minutes  1 - 3 
 
5. Board of Adjustment and Appeals  

A. Review/recommendation – Planning Case No. 25-11 
Lakeshore variance – patio removal / open deck replacement 4 - 15 
5459 Bartlett Boulevard 
Applicant:  Lisa Thostenson 

  
B. Review/recommendation – Planning Case No. 25-13                                                          16 - 39 

Expansion permit – new/replacement house  
2971 Cambridge Lane 
Applicant:  Erica Hway from Landschute, on behalf of owners, Timothy and  
Joan Kenny 

 
6. Old / New Business 
         A.   Review/discussion – 2025 Work Plan Project                                                                         
    i. Review/discussion of City Code Sec. 129-314 Exterior Storage                           40 - 43 
   
               B. City Council Liaison and Staff Project Update/Report 
    i.   City Council Policy for Commission Appointments and Reappointments  
     approved October 28, 2025 
    ii. Other(s) 
 
   C.  Next Meeting - Tues., December 2, 2025 Regular Meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 
7. Information Items - None 
 
8. Adjourn 
 
The Planning Commission is an advisory body to the City Council.   One of the Commission’s functions is to hold 
public hearings and make recommendations to the City Council.  The City Council makes all final decisions on 
these matters.   Mound City Ordinances require that certain documents and information be included in 
applications.  The Planning Commission may postpone consideration of an application that is incomplete and 
may for other reasons postpone final action on an application. For each agenda item the Commission will 
receive reports prepared by the City staff, open the hearing to the public, and discuss the action on the 
application.” 

 
QUESTIONS:      Call Sarah Smith at 952-472-0604 



MEETING MINUTES  
REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 02, 2025 
    

1. Call to Order  
Chair Goode called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
Members present:   David Goode, Sheri Wallace, Nick Rosener, Jason Baker, Drew Heal, Samantha  
       Wacker, Kristin Young and Kathy McEnaney 
Members absent:   None  
 
Staff present:    Sarah Smith, Sarah Lenz 
 
Others present:    Kathy & Rodney Thyr (1705 Baywood Shores Drive), James Shull (1724 Baywood  
       Shores Drive), Steve Hanson (5723 Kipling Ave, Minnetonka) 
 
3. Review and approval of agenda, including any amendments 
Additional photographs were provided by Kathy Thyr to review during discussion of Planning Case 25-09. 
 
MOTION by Baker, seconded by Rosener, to approve the agenda as amended. MOTION passed unanimously. 
      
4.   Review and action  
  A. August 19, 2025 special/rescheduled meeting minutes     
 
MOTION by Baker, seconded by Rosener, to approve the August 19th, 2025 meeting minutes. MOTION passed 
unanimously. 
 
5. Board of Adjustment and Appeals  

A. Review/recommendation – Planning Case No. 25-09   
Variance – Second Driveway/Apron 
1705 Baywood Shores Drive 
Applicants:  Rodney and Kathleen Thyr 

 
Smith gave an overview of the property and the request for a second driveway/apron on Baywood Shores 
Drive.  City Code Sec.129-198 (b) states the number of driveways on major streets is limited to one unless 
approved by the City Engineer.  Smith noted the proposed location of the driveway is near a hydrant and the 
painted curb intended to prevent parking.  Smith stated Staff did not recommend approval in the Planning 
Report.  Smith said the City Engineer did not recommend approval in his letter which was included in the 
Planning Report.  
 
Baker inquired about the code excerpt that limits access.  Smith commented that application of the code is 
that 1 access is allowed.    Baker asked if the curb was painted by request of the property owners. Smith said 
an inquiry was received from the property owners and Public Works painted it to protect the hydrant and 
prevent parking to allow turning.   Parking is only allowed on one side of Baywood Shores Drive.    
 
Wallace asked for clarification of the proposed location and discussion ensued about City Code and parking 
regulations. 
 
 
Kathy Thyr approached the podium and commented that Mound is a recreational community and many 
residents have vehicles, boats, trailers, RV’s and fish houses.  Ms. Thyr stated that although their driveway is 
not located on a main road, the driveways on Three Points Boulevard, which is a major road, also could 
impede traffic with their recreational vehicles and commented she has not seen any accidents.  Ms. Thyr 

1



reviewed the photo examples of properties with similar qualities of their proposed driveway/apron and said it 
is unfair for them to get approval but this request be denied.  She also informed the Planning Commission  
that she had contacted neighbors about the request and received their support.  

Member discussion ensued about where items are or will be parked on the property according to the code 
and the different possibilities or requirements needed if approval is granted.  Baker commented that the 
applicant had contacted neighbors about the request who expressed support and that the current parking 
taking place in the rear/back is preferred.  The need to evaluate this section of the code was also brought up. 

MOTION by Wallace, seconded by Baker, to recommend approval of Planning Case 25-09.  McEnaney, 
Wallace, Rosener, Baker, Young and Goode voted in favor. Heal and Wacker voted against.  MOTION passed 
6-2.

Staff requested the Planning Commission make findings for its recommendation.  

Member Wacker, who voted against the motion to recommend approval, stated she would like to see the 
area improved to driveway standards and is concerned about setting precedence, believes there are safety 
issues and commented about  lack of hardship.  Member Heal, who also voted against the motion to 
recommend approval, would like the driveway to be paved as a condition.  

Members voting in favor of the motion to recommend approval did not support Staff’s recommendation for 
denial and the recommendation for approval was based on the discussion that took place including current 
parking taking place on the property and parking in the rear is preferred. 

B. Review/recommendation – Planning Case No. 25-10
Expansion Permit – Deck (Portion) Conversion to Screen Porch
1765 Jones Lane
Applicant:  Steve Hanson on behalf of Steve Chase

Smith gave an overview of the deck conversion project explaining a portion of the deck is being converted to a 
solid structure intensifying the area but staying within the same footprint that received a prior variance 
approval for a lesser setback. The deck meets code requirements and does not exceed the 40% maximum 
hardcover coverage. Staff recommends approval with six conditions and four findings of fact.  

Steve Hanson introduced himself and explained Steve Chase, the owner, enjoys sitting on the deck with a 
view of the lake but would like to be screened in due to the bugs. Hanson said the footings will need repair 
which will be addressed during the building permit process. The siding of the enclosed deck will match the 
siding of the house and follow the contour of the roof making its appearance uniform.    

MOTION by Baker, seconded by Rosener, to approve Planning Case 25-10 with 6 conditions and 4 findings of 
fact. MOTION passed unanimously.  

6. Old / New Business

A. City Council Liaison and Staff Project Update / Report
McEnaney said the OLL Incredible Festival is coming up and asked for an update on the Halstead project. 
Smith responded saying approvals and the preliminary plat has been approved on the Minnetrista side and 
applications have been received in Mound but not the supporting documents.  

2



Smith also mentioned the OLL Incredible Festival is coming up which will take place around the same time as 
Mama’s Happy Fall Festival. 
 
   B.  Next Meeting - Tues., October 7, 2025 Regular Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
The next meeting will take place Tuesday, October 7, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
7. Information Items - None 
 
8. Adjourn 
MOTION by Baker, seconded by Rosener, to adjourn at 7:24 p.m. MOTION passed unanimously. 
 
Submitted by Sarah Lenz 
 

3



                                                

 

 
PLANNING REPORT 
 
TO:      Planning Commission  
FROM:      Sarah Smith, Community Development Director;  

Rita Trapp, Consultant Planner 
SUBJECT:     Variance – Impervious Patio to Pervious Deck Replacement 

Project 
PLANNING CASE:  25-11 
APPLICANT:     Lisa Thostenson (Project Representative is Scott Gates) 
LOCATION:      5459 Bartlett Boulevard 
MEETING DATE:  November 18, 2025   
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:   Low Density Residential 
ZONING:     R-1A Single Family Residential 
 

BACKGROUND 
Lisa Thorsensten, the (new) owner of the property at 5459 Bartlett Boulevard, has submitted an 
application requesting variance approval to allow replacement of an existing on-ground 
impervious patio previously constructed on the back of house (lakeside) with an open deck in 
the same location to include ¼ inch openings and no roof/no concrete or landscaping 
underneath. A variance is requested as the existing (impervious) patio, which is to be replaced 
with a (pervious) deck, does not meet the 50-foot lakeshore setback. The applicant’s project 
representative is Scott Gates who has been assisting with the variance application.   
 
VARIANCE 
City Code Section 129-40 (a) states that a variance may be granted to provide relief to a 
landowner where the application of the City Code imposes practical difficulty for the property 
owner. 
 (1) The variance proposed meets the criteria for Practical Difficulties as defined in City 

Code Sub. 129-2.  

 (2) Granting of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 
privilege that is denied by this chapter to owners of other lands, structures or 
buildings in the same district nor be materially detrimental to property within the 
same zone. 

 (3) The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 
difficulty.  

4



 (4) A variance shall only be permitted when it is in harmony with the general purposes 
and intent of the zoning ordinance and when the terms of the variance are 
consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

 
According to City Code Sec. 129-2, “Practical Difficulties” is defined as follows: 
 
 Practical Difficulties, as used in conjunction with a variance, means that:  

 (i)  The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 
permitted by the zoning ordinance; and 

 (ii)  The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property including 
unusual lot size or shape, topography or other circumstances not created by the 
landowner; and  

 (iii) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

  Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical 
difficulties include, but are not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for 
solar energy systems 

TIMELINE FOR DECISION 

Pursuant to Minnesota State Statutes Section 15.99, local government agencies are required to 
approve or deny land use requests within 60 days. Within the 60-day period, an automatic 
extension of no more than 60 days can be obtained by providing the applicant written notice 
containing the reason for the extension and specifying how much additional time is needed. For 
the purpose of Minnesota Statutes Section 15.99, “Day 1” is determined to be October 2, 2025. 
provided by Minnesota Statutes Section 645.15. The review period can be extended by the City 
for an additional 60 days. The 60-day timeline expires on or around November 30, 2025.  The 
applicant and Planning Commission are advised that the City will be executing a 60 day 
extension for action on the variance.  

 

NOTIFICATION 

Neighbors in the vicinity of the property at 5459 Bartlett Boulevard, per Hennepin County 
taxpayer records, were mailed a letter on November 7th to inform them of the Planning 
Commission's review of the application at its November 18th special/rescheduled meeting.       

 

 

 

 

 

5



DISCUSSION 
1. The applicant purchased the property this past summer. The existing house, which was 

built in 1900, has road frontage on Bartlett Boulevard on the north side of the lot and 
lakeshore frontage on Lake Minnetonka on the south side of the lot.  There is also a 
guest cottage and detached accessory garage on the property.  An expansion permit 
was approved in 2017 that allowed for construction of an attached garage addition and 
main floor master suite and 45 percent hardcover.  

 
2. The proposed new lakeside deck will replace the existing patio which runs the length of 

the house and extends approximately 14 feet towards the lake.   
 
3. While the existing patio and proposed new deck are not meeting the lakeshore setback, 

the proposed new open deck will meet the minimum side setbacks required by the City 
Code. 

 
3. Maximum allowed impervious surface coverage on the property is allowed up to 45 

percent as lawful, nonconforming. The survey showed hardcover slightly over 45 
percent but additional information from the applicant representative indicates the 
current amount is between 43-44 percent but will be under the 40 percent allowance 
for a lot of record.   The proposed new deck will be open and does not include 
hardcover or landscaping/plastic underneath and will not count towards hardcover.  

 
STAFF/CONSULTANT/DEPARTMENT/AGENCIES REVIEW 

Copies of the request and supporting materials were forwarded to involved departments, 
consultants, and public agencies for review and comment.   

MnDNR.  MnDNR Hydrologist Ryan Toot provided the following comments for the 
variance request: 

  
“Thank you for the opportunity to review this variance request.  

 
The proposal is a new non-conforming structure at a higher elevation of the current non-
conforming structure at up to 70% of the required structure setback from the Ordinary High 
Water Level of Lake Minnetonka in Mound. Structure setbacks help preserve the character 
(aesthetic, visual, and otherwise) of shorelands, reduce non-point source pollution into water 
bodies, and maintain property values. 

 
If the variance is approved, I recommend a vegetated buffer, preferably native vegetation, be 
required as mitigation to screen the new, somewhat higher structure from the lake and assist in 
preventing any excess runoff caused by the lack of vegetation in the structure's footprint within 
the legal setback.” 
 
 

6



The MnDNR Area Hydrologist’s comments were shared with the applicant who is 
receptive to incorporating plantings along the shoreline.  

Hennepin County Transportation Department.  Hennepin County Transportation 
provided comments that their plat review committee did not have any concerns with 
the request.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends approval of the variance and proposes the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall be responsible for recording the resolution with Hennepin County 
unless the applicant requests the City file the resolution with the recording fees to be 
paid by the escrow. The applicant is advised that the resolution will not be released for 
recording until all fees for the variance application have been paid and the escrow 
account is in good standing.  

 
2. Applicant shall be responsible for procurement of any and/or all public agency permits 

including the submittal of all required information prior to building permit issuance.  
 

3. A natural planting/landscape buffer near the shoreline shall be established which shall 
be subject to review/acceptance by the City. 
 

4. Additional comments and/or conditions from the City Council, Staff, consultants, and 
public agencies. 

 
Staff recommends Planning Commission recommend approval of the variance based on the 
following findings of fact: 
 

1. The criteria of City Code Section 129-40 Variance are being met.  
 

2. The replacement deck is open and decreases hardcover. The property, post construction 
construction, is being brought into conformance with the 40 percent hardcover 
allowance for a lot of record and viewed as favorable.  
 

3. The new open deck to replace the existing patio is generally on grade. 
 

4. A lakeside deck for a single-family home is reasonable and allows for enjoyment and 
recreational use.  The deck is in harmony with other uses in the area and fits the 
character of the neighborhood.  

 
 

 
 

7



 
 
CITY COUNCIL REVIEW 

In the event a recommendation for the variance is received from the Planning Commission at its 
November 18th meeting, the application will be forwarded to the City Council for consideration 
at an upcoming meeting with tentative dates of Tues., November 25th or Tues., December 9th. 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



                                                              

 

PLANNING REPORT 
 
TO:      Planning Commission  
FROM:      Rita Trapp and Mia Colloredo-Mansfeld, Consulting Planners  
    Sarah Smith, Community Development Director  
SUBJECT:   Review of Expansion Permit Request (Case No. 25-13) 
APPLICANT:     Erica Hway, Landschute on behalf of Timothy and Joan Kenny 
LOCATION:    2971 Cambridge Lane (PID No. 24-117-24-42-0004) 
MEETING DATE:  November 18, 2025 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:   Low Density Residential 
ZONING:     R-1A Single Family Residential, Shoreland Overlay District 
 

SUMMARY  
The applicant, Erica Hway of Landschute, is requesting an Expansion Permit on behalf of 
Timothy and Joan Kenny for a new/replacement house project to be constructed predominately 
within the existing house footprint. The lakeshore lot is a 4,005 square foot lot of record 
located on the eastern side of Cooks Bay. The existing house has nonconforming setbacks and 
currently exceeds the 40 percent impervious surface allowance. The proposed house 
reconstruction will increase the footprint of the house from 1,351 square feet to 1,551 square 
feet. The proposed reconstruction will increase the house from a one-story house to a 2.5 story 
house, thus requiring an expansion permit. With the proposed reconstruction, impervious 
surface will continue to be nonconforming, however, use of permeable pavers will reduce the 
degree of nonconformity. 
 
Additional changes between the existing and proposed house include removal of an accessory 
shed; the expansion of the garage to the south, shifting the southern edge of the house and the 
garage closer to the property line on the south; and the relocation of the steps to the water on 
the lakeshore side. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

16



REVIEW PROCEDURE 
Criteria 

An expansion permit for a nonconforming structure may be issued, but is not mandated, to 
provide relief to the landowner where this chapter imposes practical difficulties to the property 
owner in the reasonable use of the land. In determining whether practical difficulties exist, the 
applicant must demonstrate that the following criteria exist:   

1. The proposed expansion is a reasonable use of the property considering:  
(a) Function and aesthetics of the expansion.  
(b) Absence of adverse off-site impacts such as from traffic, noise, odors and dust.  
(c) Adequacy of off-street parking.  

2. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances justifying the expansion are unique to the 
property and result from lot size or shape, topography, or other circumstances over 
which the owners of the property since enactment of this chapter have had no control.   

3. The exceptional or extraordinary circumstances do not result from the actions of the 
applicant.  

4. The expansion would not adversely affect or alter the essential character of the 
neighborhood.   

5. The expansion requested is the minimum needed. 

60-Day Land Use Application Review Process 
Pursuant to Minnesota State Statutes Section 15.99, local government agencies are required to 
approve or deny land use requests within 60 days. Within the 60-day period, an automatic 
extension of no more than 60 days can be obtained by providing the applicant written notice 
containing the reason for the extension and specifying how much additional time is needed. For 
the purpose of Minnesota Statutes Section 15.99, “Day 1” is determined to be October 16, 2025 
as provided by Minnesota Statutes Section 645.15. The review period can be extended by the 
City for an additional 60-days if needed. The 60-day timeline expires on or around December 
14, 2025.   The applicant and Planning Commission are advised that the City will be executing a 
60 day extension for action on the expansion permit. 

NOTIFICATION 
Neighboring property owners of the subject site were mailed a letter on November 7, 2025 to 
inform them of the Planning Commission's review of the application at its November 18th 
special/rescheduled meeting.  

 

 

 

 

17



STAFF / CONSULTANT / AGENCY / UTILITIES REVIEW 
Copies of the request and supporting materials were forwarded to involved departments, 
consultants, agencies, and private utilities for review and comment.  As of the preparation of 
the packet, no staff/consultant/agency comments have been received. 

DISCUSSION 
 

1. At 4,005 square feet, the property is under the minimum required lot area of 6,000 
square feet for a lot of record in R1-A. The lot is adjacent to Brighton Commons so there 
is approximately 60 feet between the proposed structure and the ordinary high water 
level (OHWL).  
 

2. The applicant is proposing a new house that maintains the nonconforming rear yard 
setback of 9.84 ft and the nonconforming deck setback of 1.4 ft in the north side yard. 
The proposed front and south side yard setbacks are conforming, as is the OHWL 
setback. Required setbacks, existing setbacks, and proposed new setbacks are listed in 
the table below. 

 
Setback Required Existing Proposed 
Front yard 20 ft 27.75 ft 20.3 ft 
Rear yard 15 ft 9.84 ft 9.84 ft 
Side yard 
(south) 

6 ft 6.36 ft 6.2 ft  

Side yard (north) 6 ft 1.4 ft (deck);  
7.5 building 

1.4 (deck); 
7.5 (building) 

OHWL 50 ft 60.9 ft 60.9 ft 
 
 

3. The proposed new house increases the footprint of the existing house from 1,351 
square feet to 1,551 square feet. The areas where the footprint of the proposed house 
is larger than the existing house are all conforming. Additional changes between the 
existing and proposed house include: 
 

A. Reconstructing the patio on the northern side of the house. The patio is slightly 
smaller, but still nonconforming, thus requiring an expansion permit. 

B. Removal of an accessory shed in the southeast corner. 
C. The expansion of the garage to the south and east. 
D. Shifting the southern edge of the house and the garage closer to the property 

line on the south. 
E.  The relocation of the steps on the rear of the house on the lakeshore side.  
F. Replacing driveway with permeable pavers. 

18



 
4. The proposed house will also increase in height, from one story to 2.5 stories. As the 

rear wall of the house has a nonconforming setback, the addition of a second story at 
this setback is considered a fill-in expansion and requires an expansion permit. Applicant 
information is that the approximate building height is 31 feet for the new/replacement 
but has not been verified. 
 

5. Access to the adjacent property to the north requires use of a portion of the driveway 
located in the northeast corner of the property as Cambridge Lane ends just north of 
this property. This requires pavement, permeable pavers, or other suitable driveway 
surfacing in order to facilitate access to the adjacent property. Due to the required 
access, reducing the driveway area for the property to align with the garage entrance is 
not realistic. 
 

6. Impervious surface coverage on the current lot is 64.69%. The maximum impervious 
surface for a lot of record is 40%. The applicant is proposing to use permeable pavers on 
the driveway resulting in a new impervious surface coverage of 48.31%. While this is still 
nonconforming, it significantly reduces the nonconformity. As noted above, a portion of 
the driveway serves the property to the north.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 

7. Yard Encroachments 
 

A. The proposed house has a bay window on the rear wall of the second story. Per 
Sec. 129-197, bay windows do not count as encroachments to yard 
requirements, “provided the encroachment within the yard area does not 
exceed eight square feet and provided the setback of the principal wall conforms 
to district setback requirements.” 
 
Due to the existing nonconforming rear yard setback, the principal wall is 
determined to be the existing setback of 9.84 feet. Based on the submitted 
survey, the bay window has an area of approximately 11.4 square feet, which 
exceeds the allowed encroachment. The applicant should decrease the size of 
the bay window to meet requirements. 
 

B. The site plan shows the A/C and generator units located on the exterior of the 
south side of the proposed house. Per City Code Sec.  129-197, mechanical 
equipment cannot extend more than two feet into the required yard area.  
Mechanical equipment may also count towards hardcover.  

 
C. The proposed stairs shown on the rear of the house is an allowed encroachment 

per City Code Sec. 129-197 which reads as follows: 
 
“Uncovered porches, stoops or similar entrance structures not exceeding 
32 square feet which do not extend in elevation above the height of the 
ground floor elevation of the principal building, and steps that do not 
extend to a distance of less than two feet from any lot line.”   
 

D. Eaves are allowed to encroach into setbacks by 2 feet.  Any eave portion exceed 
2 feet counts towards hardcover unless there is hardcover underneath. 

 
 

8. Per code, all new construction is required to be at or over the Regulatory Flood 
Protection Elevation of 933.0 for Lake Minnetonka. The survey shows a basement floor 
elevation of 934.73 which meets the required minimum elevation. The plans also show 
an elevator/elevator pit.  Applicant is advised there there may be building code and/or 
floodproofing requirements that apply.    
 
 
 
 
 

20



 
 

9. Construction parking, staging, delivery and storage of materials, and related 
construction activities need to be coordinated with the Public Works Department for 
the proposed new/replacement house project to ensure the road remains clear during 
construction to provide access and road safety.   Applicant is requested to contact Public 
Works Director Ryan Prich to discuss parking/equipment/materials staging plans for the 
project and the City’s on street parking regulations and seasonal parking restrictions.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend City Council approval of the 
Expansion Permit for the house remodel/additions project subject to the following list of 
conditions: 
 
1. The bay window shall be modified so as to qualify as an encroachment allowance per  City 

Code Sec. 129-197. 
 
2. Any eave not meeting the 2 foot encroachment allowance shall be modified in accordance 

with City Code Sec. 129-197.  
 
3. The applicant shall ensure the A/C units and generator do not extend more than two feet 

into the required yard area.  
 
3. The applicant shall work with the City as part of permitting to ensure that construction  

parking, staging, and delivery of materials is addressed in a manner which ensures access 
and road safety.   

 
4. The applicant shall be responsible for recording the resolution with Hennepin County unless 

the applicant requests the City file the resolution with the recording fees to be paid by the 
escrow. The applicant is advised that the resolution will not be released for recording until 
all fees for the variance application have been paid and the escrow account is in good 
standing.  

 
5. Applicant shall be responsible for procurement of any and/or all public agency permits 

including the submittal of all required information prior to building permit issuance. 
 
6. Additional conditions from Staff, the Planning Commission, and City Council. 

 
In recommending approval of the expansion permit, Staff offers the following findings: 

1. The criteria of City Code Section 129-41 Expansion Permit are being met.  
 
 

21



 
 

 
2. The existing building nonconformities on the site were there prior to the applicant’s 

acquisition of the property. 
 

3. The proposed expansion is a reasonable use of the property. The expansion will be in 
keeping with the character and aesthetics of the area. 
 

4. The proposed expansion allows for the continued use of the property as a single-family 
home in a manner that does not create any additional adverse impacts to the area.  
 

5. This expansion would not increase the degree of nonconformity, only the intensity of 
the use of the lot in order to increase the living area of the house. 

 
CITY COUNCIL REVIEW 

In the event a recommendation is received from the Planning Commission, it is anticipated that 
the expansion permit request will be considered by the City Council at its December 9, 2025 
meeting at 6:00 p.m.  

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
0.01

C
over Sheet

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

SH
EET IN

D
EX

G
eneral D

raw
ings

Plans - N
ew

 C
onstruction

Elevations

Sections

D
etails

Schedules &
 D

iagram
s

A
0.01

A
0.02

A
1.01

A
1.02

A
1.03

A
1.04

A
1.05

A
2.01

A
3.01

A
5.01

A
6.01

C
over S

heet
A

rchitectural S
ite P

lan

Foundation P
lan

M
ain Level P

lan
S

econd Level P
lan

A
ttic P

lan
R

oof P
lan

E
xterior E

levations

B
uilding S

ections

Fram
ing D

etails

W
indow

 &
 D

oor S
chedules

PR
O

JEC
T IN

FO
R

M
ATIO

N
O

C
C

U
PA

N
C

Y: 
 

 
IR

C
-1, S

IN
G

LE
-FA

M
ILY D

W
E

LLIN
G

ZO
N

IN
G

 D
IS

TR
IC

T: 
 

R
-1A

TO
TA

L B
U

ILD
IN

G
 A

R
EA

FLO
O

R
M

ain Level, Finished A
rea

M
ain Level, G

arage

M
ain Level, M

ech, U
nfinished

Second Level, Finished A
rea

A
ttic, Finished A

rea

A
ttic, Loft

A
R

E
A

976

501

69

1,457

626

555
4,184 ft²

CL

A
B

B
R

EVIATIO
N

S
SPEC

IA
L SYM

B
O

LS
&

 
 

A
nd

@
 

 
A

t

x 
 

B
y

 
 

C
enterline

° 
 

D
egrees

' 
 

Feet

" 
 

Inches

%
 

 
P

ercent

# 
 

P
ounds/N

um
ber

+/- 
 

P
lus or M

inus

A
.B

. 
 

A
nchor B

olt
A

/C
 

 
A

ir C
onditioning

A
D

J. 
 

A
djustable

A
FF 

 
A

bove Finished Floor
A

FG
 

 
A

bove Finished G
rade

A
H

J 
 

A
uthority H

aving Jurisdiction
A

P
P

R
O

X
. 

A
pproxim

ate
A

R
C

H
.  

A
rchitectural

B
D

 
 

B
oard

B
.I. 

 
B

uilt-In
B

IT. 
 

B
itum

inous
B

LD
G

  
B

uilding
B

LK
G

  
B

locking
B

M
 

 
B

eam
B

O
F 

 
B

ottom
 of Footing

B
O

W
 

 
B

ottom
 of W

all
B

S
M

T  
B

asem
ent

B
.W

.L.  
B

raced W
all Line

C
A

B
 

 
C

abinet
C

A
N

T  
C

antilevered
C

.C
. 

 
C

enter to C
enter

C
L 

 
C

enterline
C

IP 
 

C
ast-In-P

lace
C

M
U

 
 

C
oncrete M

asonry U
nit

C
O

N
C

  
C

oncrete
C

O
N

T  
C

ontinuous
D

B
L 

 
D

ouble
D

IM
 

 
D

im
ensions

D
R

 
 

D
oor

D
N

 
 

D
ow

n
D

W
 

 
D

ishw
asher

E
A 

 
E

ach
E

LE
C

 
 

E
lectrical

E
Q

 
 

E
qual

E
W

 
 

E
ach W

ay
E

X
C

 
 

E
xcavate

E
X

T. 
 

E
xterior

FC
O

 
 

Floor C
leanout

FD
 

 
Floor D

rain
FD

N
. 

 
Foundation

FFE
 

 
Finished Floor E

levation
FG

 
 

Finished G
rade

FL 
 

Floor Level
FR

P
F 

 
Fireproof

FT 
 

Feet
FTG

 
 

Footing
FU

R
N

  
Furnace

G
Y

P 
 

G
ypsum

H
.B

. 
 

H
ose B

ib
H

VA
C

  
H

eating, Ventilating,
 

 
and A

ir C
onditioning

JS
T 

 
Joist

IB
C

 
 

International B
uilding C

ode

IN
 

 
Inches

IN
S

U
L  

Insulation
IN

T 
 

Interior
IR

C
 

 
International R

esidential C
ode

LH
 

 
Left H

and
LS

L 
 

Lam
inated S

trand Lum
ber

LV
L 

 
Lam

inated Veneer Lum
ber

M
ech.  

M
echanical

M
.O

. 
 

M
asonry O

pening
M

S
B

C
  

M
innesota S

tate B
uilding C

ode
M

S
R

C
  

M
innesota S

tate R
esidential

 
 

C
ode

O
.C

. 
 

O
n C

enter
P

L 
 

P
roperty Line

P
LF 

 
P

er Lineal Foot
P.S

.I. 
 

P
ounds per S

quare Inch
P.T. 

 
P

ressure Treated
R

 
 

R
adius

R
E

B
A

R
 

R
einforcing B

ar
R

E
FR

  
R

efrigerator
R

E
IN

F  
R

einforced
R

E
Q

D
  

R
equired

R
H

 
 

R
ight H

and
R

M
 

 
R

oom
R

.O
. 

 
R

ough O
pening

S
B

 
 

S
teel B

eam
S

C
 

 
S

teel C
olum

n
S

D
 

 
S

m
oke D

etector
S

F 
 

S
quare Feet

S
pecs.  

S
pecifications

S
Q

 
 

S
quare

S
L 

 
S

pring Line
S

IM
. 

 
S

im
ilar

S
TR

 
 

S
tructural

T&
G

 
 

Tongue &
 G

roove
TO

B
 

 
Top of B

eam
TO

C
 

 
Top of C

urb
TO

F 
 

Top of Footing
TO

H
 

 
Top of H

eel
TO

J 
 

Top of Joist
TO

M
 

 
Top of M

asonry
TO

W
 

 
Top of W

all
TR

TD
  

Treated
TY

P. 
 

Typical
U

.N
.O

.  
U

nless N
oted O

therw
ise

W
/ 

 
W

ith
W

.C
. 

 
W

ater C
loset (Toilet)

W
.H

. 
 

W
ater H

eater
W

.I.C
.  

W
alk-In C

loset
W

/O
 

 
W

ithout
W

.S
. 

 
W

ater S
oftener

Y
D

S
 

 
Yards

X

N

X

1
A-101
1

A-101

1
A-101
1

A-101

XX

X
 S

TO
R

Y
0'-0"
X

 S
TO

R
Y

0'-0"

SEC
TIO

N
 M

A
R

K
ER

S
heet R

eference N
um

ber

D
raw

ing R
eference N

um
ber

S
heet R

eference N
um

ber

D
raw

ing R
eference N

um
ber

ELEVATIO
N

 M
A

R
K

ER

D
ETA

IL M
A

R
K

ER

S
heet R

eference N
um

ber
D

raw
ing R

eference N
um

ber

R
EVISIO

N
 M

A
R

K
ER

R
evision N

um
ber

(R
efer to R

evision Log)

LEVEL M
A

R
K

ER

R
eference Level

E
levation (M

ain Level = 0'-0")

W
IN

D
O

W
 LA

B
EL

W
indow

 ID

D
O

O
R

 LA
B

EL

N
O

R
TH

 A
R

R
O

W

N
om

inal D
oor S

lab W
idth

N
om

inal D
oor S

lab H
eight

JO
IST LA

B
EL

Joist Type
Joist O

rientation

B
EA

M
 LIN

E

B
eam

 Type

B
EA

R
IN

G
 PO

ST

B
earing P

ost
(Type &

 S
ize Varies)

C
EILIN

G
 H

EIG
H

T

C
eiling H

eight
(R

ough Fram
ing)

X

X

X
'-X

"

X'-X"
X'-X"

X
D

oor ID

D
irection of True N

orth

Joist S
pacing

EN
LA

R
G

ED
 PLA

N
 M

A
R

K
ER

S
heet R

eference N
um

ber
D

raw
ing R

eference N
um

ber

ELEM
EN

T A
B

O
VE

E
lem

ent A
bove

Floor P
lan C

ut P
lane

H
ID

D
EN

 ELEM
EN

T

H
idden E

lem
ent

C
U

T FILL SYM
B

O
LS

C
O

VER
 FILL SYM

B
O

LS

XXXX

XXXX

SYM
B

O
L K

EY
M

ATER
IA

L LEG
EN

D

C
oncrete M

asonry U
nit

N
onstructural B

rick M
asonry

N
onstructural S

tone M
asonry

S
teel

S
tructural C

oncrete

N
onstructural C

oncrete

P
lyw

ood

W
ood S

iding or P
aneling

W
ood Flooring

G
ypsum

 B
oard

C
arpeting

R
igid Insulation

S
pray Foam

 Insulation

B
att Insulation

E
arth

G
lulam

S
hingles

(M
aterial &

 E
xposure M

ay Vary)

W
ood S

iding or P
aneling

(S
pacing &

 O
rientation M

ay Vary)

P
avers

B
rick

(B
ond M

ay Vary)

B
oard &

 B
atten

Fieldstone

Lim
estone - S

tacked

Flagstone

C
oncrete M

asonry U
nit

G
EN

ER
A

L N
O

TES
1. 

C
urrent International R

esidential C
ode (IR

C
) and M

innesota S
tate B

uilding C
ode (M

S
B

C
) shall govern.  A

ll S
ubcontractors

 
and Vendors herein accept their respective responsibility for com

pliance.
2. 

P
lans are representational only and are subject to field verification.

3. 
The W

ork shall include labor and m
aterial, not specifically indicated, w

hich are necessary to com
plete the job in a m

anner
 

w
hich is consistent w

ith Landschute standard practices.  It is understood that the plans and specifications do not
 

necessarily indicate all W
ork required for the full perform

ance and com
pletion of the W

ork.  Inconsistencies in the quality or
 

quantity of W
ork indicated shall be interpreted in accordance w

ith Landschute standard practices and m
ust be addressed

 
prior to execution of the W

ork.
4. 

A
ny request for extra charges shall only be valid if subm

itted and agreed to prior to the execution of W
ork.  C

om
m

encem
ent

 
of W

ork constitutes acceptance of substrate.  A
ll w

ork shall be perform
ed in a neat, craftsm

an like m
anner w

ith extra care
  

and consideration given to protecting w
ork already in place.  E

ach party is responsible for repairing its ow
n dam

age to the
 

job and for rem
oving its ow

n debris to a designated area on the job site. A
ll tradesm

en on the job are responsible for
 

know
ing and adhering to the above-outlined policies.

5. 
If S

ubcontractor / Vendor fails to correct w
ork or persistently fails to carry out w

ork as required, Landschute m
ay, by giving

 
48 hour notice, term

inate the agreem
ent, perform

 the w
ork itself and deduct the costs from

 any balance ow
ed to

 
S

ubcontractor / Vendor.  If, during the first year of occupancy, it is necessary for the S
ubcontractor / Vendor to repair its

 
w

ork as a result of deficiency in labor or m
aterial, it shall also repair any subsequent trade's w

ork as to create a finished
 

product.
6. 

N
o paym

ent for any subcontract labor shall be m
ade until appropriate C

ertificates of Insurance, including coverage for
 

both G
eneral Liability and W

orkers' C
om

pensation are provided to and acknow
ledged by Landschute.

7. 
S

elections for finish m
aterials, fixtures, equipm

ent, and furnishings to be coordinated directly betw
een C

lient and
 

Landschute.

FR
A

M
IN

G
 N

O
TES

G
E

N
E

R
A

L FR
A

M
IN

G
1.  

A
ll dim

ensions are to face of rough fram
ing unless U

.N
.O

.
2. 

C
eiling heights indicated do not necessarily coincide w

ith w
all heights. R

efer to sections and structural roof layout for
 

w
all fram

ing heights.
3. 

S
teel S

ubcontractor to provide design for all steel connections and shall provide shop draw
ings to be approved by

 
Landschute prior to fabrication and installation.

4. 
A

ll steel beam
s and colum

ns at exterior w
alls to be held back 2" from

 exterior of structure to allow
 for 2" insulation.

5. 
R

efer to shop draw
ings provided by supplier for all fram

ing, electrical, and m
echanical requirem

ents of all specialty
 

equipm
ent, including but not lim

ited to fireplaces and elevators.

W
A

LL FR
A

M
IN

G
1. 

E
xterior W

alls and Interior bearing w
alls to be 2x6 S

P
F studs @

 16" O
.C

. w
/ double top plate and single bottom

 plate.
2. 

Low
er level bearing w

alls to be bolted to 4x6 pressure treated lum
ber flush to concrete floor slab (refer to foundation

 
details).

3. 
A

ll plates in contact w
ith concrete slabs to be treated lum

ber.
4. 

Interior partition w
alls to be 2x4 S

P
F studs @

 16" O
.C

. U
.N

.O
.

5. 
A

ll w
indow

 and door headers to be dropped (2) 2x10 S
P

F U
.N

.O
.

6. 
A

ll bearing posts to be (2)2x6 U
.N

.O
.

7. 
R

efer to section and detail draw
ings for exterior sheathing, w

eatherproofing, and cladding details.
8. 

W
all bracing to com

ply w
ith R

602.10.
9. 

A
llow

 for 3 1/2" casing at all w
indow

 and door openings.

FLO
O

R
 FR

A
M

IN
G

1. 
S

ill plates at foundation w
alls to be continuous 2x6 pressure treated lum

ber on sill gasket.
2. 

D
eck fram

ing to be treated S
P

F U
.N

.O
.

3. 
Floor and roof fram

ing layouts to be designed and provided by supplier.
4. 

A
ll beam

s to be flush U
.N

.O
.

5. 
Floor assem

blies to com
ply w

ith S
M

R
C

 R
.302.13.

6. 
A

ll joist hangers m
ounted on steel beam

s to be face-m
ounted.

N
O

T TO
 S

C
A

LE
1

E
xterior P

erspective
S

C
A

LE
: 1"   = 50'

2
Location M

ap
0

20'
50'

100'

N

29



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
0.02

A
rchitectural Site Plan

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

SITE N
O

TES
1. 

E
rosion control shall be installed in accordance w

ith
 

requirem
ents of A

H
J.

2. 
Tree rem

oval and replacem
ent to be conducted in accordance

 
w

ith requirem
ents of A

H
J.

3. 
S

horing shall be provided as necessary based on site
 

conditions.
4. 

G
rading contours indicated on site plan are to be verified by

 
surveyor. R

efer to proposed certificate of survey for proposed
 

certificate of survey for proposed site grading and retaining w
all

 
locations.

5. 
R

etaining w
all m

aterial and detailing to be determ
ined at tim

e
 

of installation. R
etaining w

all height is not to exceed 4 feet
 

unless engineering is provided.
6. 

S
ite stabilization to be 6" sod. 

7. 
S

lope final grade from
 foundation at m

inim
um

 2%
 slope.

8. 
N

ew
 plantings to be determ

ined at tim
e of installation.

9. 
D

rivew
ay and sidew

alk m
aterials to be determ

ined at tim
e of

 
installation.

R
EN

O
VATIO

N
 PLA

N
 LEG

EN
D

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 TO

 B
E

 R
E

TA
IN

E
D

TO
 B

E
 D

E
M

O
LIS

H
E

D

N
E

W
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TIO
N

ZO
N

IN
G

 D
IS

TR
IC

T: 
 

R
-1A

LO
T A

R
E

A
: 

 
 

4,005 S
Q

 FT

D
E

V
E

LO
P

M
E

N
T S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S

FR
O

N
T S

E
TB

A
C

K
: 

 
20 FT 

 

S
ID

E
 YA

R
D

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 
 

6 FT*

R
E

A
R

 YA
R

D
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
:  

15 FT 

IM
P

E
R

V
IO

U
S

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

: 
40%

*

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T: 

 
2

1/2   S
TO

R
Y &

 35 FT 
 

 
 

 
*IN

D
IC

ATE
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T FO

R
 LO

TS
 O

F R
E

C
O

R
D

SITE &
 ZO

N
IN

G
 IN

FO
R

M
ATIO

N

12'

7.251'
33.507'

E
D

G
E

 O
F D

R
IV

E
W

AY

LIN
E

 O
F S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E

TO
 B

E
 D

E
M

O
LIS

H
E

D

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 B

LO
C

K
 R

E
T. W

A
LL

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 B

LO
C

K
 R

E
T. W

A
LL

P
O

R
TIO

N
 O

F D
R

IV
E

W
AY

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 FO

R
N

E
IG

H
B

O
R

IN
G

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY A
C

C
E

S
S

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

S
TE

P
S

934

936
938

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 H

O
M

E

S
H

E
D

G
A

R
A

G
E

D
R

IV
E

W
AY

15' SBL

6' S
B

L

6' S
B

L

20' SBL

BRIGHTON
COMMON

CAMBRIDGE
ROAD

12'

7.251'
33.507'

E
D

G
E

 O
F D

R
IV

E
W

AY

LIN
E

 O
F S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E

TO
 B

E
 D

E
M

O
LIS

H
E

D

N
E

W
 P

E
R

M
E

A
B

LE
PAV

E
R

S

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 B

LO
C

K
 R

E
T. W

A
LL

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 B

LO
C

K
 R

E
T. W

A
LL

P
O

R
TIO

N
 O

F D
R

IV
E

W
AY

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 FO

R
N

E
IG

H
B

O
R

IN
G

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY A
C

C
E

S
S

G
R

ILL

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY LIN
E

B
ITU

M
IN

O
U

S

S
TE

P
S

934

936
938

D
R

IV
E

W
AY

15' SBL

6' S
B

L

6' S
B

L

20' SBL

N
E

W
H

O
M

E

BRIGHTON
COMMON

CAMBRIDGE
ROAD

PATIO

G
A

R
A

G
E

S
C

A
LE

: 1/8"   =    1'-0"
1

S
ite P

lan - D
em

olition0
4'

8'
16'

S
C

A
LE

: 1/8"   =    1'-0"
2

S
ite P

lan - P
roposed N

ew
 C

onstruction
0

4'
8'

16'

30



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
1.01

Foundation Plan

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

FO
U

N
D

ATIO
N

 PLA
N

 N
O

TES
1. 

E
levations of TO

W
 and B

O
F are indicated on the Foundation

 
P

lan but are subject to field verification. C
onsult w

ith
 

Landschute if any discrepancies are discovered.
2. 

Top of all concrete foundation w
alls to be at m

inim
um

 6" and at
 

m
ost 12" above finished grade as indicated on the survey.

3. 
Top of m

asonry ledges to be 6" below
 finished grade as

 
indicated on survey.

4. 
P

itch poured stoops and porch slab aw
ay from

 structure 1/4"
 

per foot m
inim

um
.

5. 
S

tructural details for foundation w
alls and strip footings to be

 
provided by S

ubcontractor.

8'-8 1/2"22'-8 1/2"

19'-2"
7'-11"

22'-1"
20'-0"

13'-1 3/4" 4'-4 3/8" 8'-5 7/8"

13'-9 1/2"
25'-4 1/2"

30'-0"

4'-8 1/2"

26'-0"

3 1/2" P
O

U
R

E
D

 C
O

N
C

. S
LA

B
O

V
E

R
 6 M

IL. P
O

LY
W

/ S
A

N
D

 O
R

 C
R

U
S

H
E

D
 R

O
C

K
 B

A
S

E

4" P
O

U
R

E
D

 C
O

N
C

. S
LA

B
W

/ R
A

D
IA

N
T FLO

O
R

 H
E

AT
O

V
E

R
 6 M

IL. P
O

LY
W

/ S
A

N
D

 O
R

 C
R

U
S

H
E

D
 R

O
C

K
 B

A
S

E
P

ITC
H

 TO
 FLO

O
R

 D
R

A
IN

S
S

AW
 C

U
T C

O
N

TR
O

L JO
IN

TS

3 1/2" P
O

U
R

E
D

 C
O

N
C

. S
LA

B
W

/ 2%
 S

LO
P

E
TO

 P
E

R
IM

E
TE

R
W

/ S
A

N
D

 O
R

 C
R

U
S

H
E

D
 R

O
C

K
 B

A
S

E

ELEVATO
R

PIT

PATIO
 A

B
O

VE

U
N

EXC
AVATED

M
EC

H
 R

O
O

M
A

B
O

VE

M
A

IN
TA

IN
 D

R
Y P

IT
W

/ 7,000# IM
PA

C
T LO

A
D

P
O

S
T FTG

S
P

E
R

 S
TR

N
O

TC
H

 W
A

LLS
 AT

G
A

R
A

G
E

 D
O

O
R

S

LIM
E

S
TO

N
E

 O
R

 FIE
LD

S
TO

N
E

P
E

R
IM

E
TE

R

2x6 TR
TD

 P
LATE

FO
U

N
D

ATIO
N

S
 P

E
R

 S
TR

S
E

E
 B

U
ILD

IN
G

 S
E

C
TIO

N
S

FO
R

 S
LA

B
 E

LE
VATIO

N

2" LE
D

G
E

, H
O

LD
 D

O
W

N
 B

E
LO

W
 PATIO

 S
LA

B

FLOOR TRUSSES

FLOOR TRUSSESFLOOR TRUSSES

20'-0"
19'-2"

30'-0"

2'-4 3/4"
4'-5"

N

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
1

Foundation P
lan

0
2'

4'
8'

31



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
1.02

M
ain Level Plan

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

UP

DN

UP

DN

DN

DN

DN

6'-8"
2'-4"

W
-09

W
-09

8'-0"
6'-0"

W
-08

6'-8"
3'-0"

6'-8"
2'-8"

W
-01

6'-8"
3'-0"

6'-8"
3'-0"

6'-8"
3'-0"

8'-0"
9'-0"

8'-0"
9'-0"

6'-8"
2'-8"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-8"

W
-06

W
-06

W-02

W
-03

W
-03

W
-03

W-05 W-05 W-04 W-04W-05 8'-1"
2'-8"

6'-8"
3'-0"

W
-07

1
A

3.01
1

A
3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

2.01
4

A
2.01

3
A

2.01

1
A

2.01

19'-2"
7'-11 1/2"

22'-0 1/2"
20'-0"

69'-2"

26'-0"

25'-4 1/2"
30'-0"

13'-9 1/2"

1'-11"

1'-8"

7'-5 1/2"
9'-1 1/2"

5'-3 1/2"

6'-1"
2'-0 1/2"

5'-6 1/2"5'-0"

11'-1" 3'-8 1/2" 3'-10 1/2"

2"

8'-8 1/2"
12'-5 1/2"

3'-9"
2'-6"

H
ATC

H
E

D
 W

A
LLS

 IN
D

IC
ATE

S
A

FE
 R

O
O

M
 W

A
LL C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TIO
N

TB
D

A
/C

A
/C

G
E

N
E

R
ATO

R

D
A

S
H

E
D

 LIN
E

 IN
D

IC
ATE

S
R

O
O

F O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

 A
B

O
V

E

D
A

S
H

E
D

 LIN
E

S
IN

D
IC

ATE
 D

R
O

P
P

E
D

FIN
IS

H
 C

E
ILIN

G
 B

E
A

M
S

C
A

N
T. B

AY A
B

O
V

E

G
R

A
N

ITE
 PATIO

 S
TO

N
E

S
, M

O
R

TA
R

 S
E

T

W
ATE

R
S

H
U

T-O
FF

FDC
LE

A
N

O
U

T

B
O

ILE
R

A
IR

 E
X

C
H

A
N

G
E

R

D
IN

IN
G

LIVIN
G

K
ITC

H
EN

36" REFR

EN
TRY

O
P

E
N

 R
A

IL

PW
D

R

M
EC

H

2-C
A

R
G

A
R

A
G

E

PATIO

BUFFET

S
TO

R
.

B
E

N
C

HELEVATOR
MACHINE

AREA

ELEVATO
R

B
A

C
K

 K
ITC

H
EN

PA
N

TR
Y

10'-2 1/2"
C

E
ILIN

G

W
H

FU
R

N
400
A

M
P

E
LE

C

STOR. STOR.

W
A

LLS
 TO

H
AV

E
 W

O
O

D
PA

N
E

LIN
G

4" S
LA

B
W

/ IN
-FLO

O
R

 R
A

D
IA

N
T H

E
AT

P
ITC

H
 S

LA
B

 TO
 FLO

O
R

 D
R

A
IN

S
2" R

IG
ID

 FO
A

M
 IN

S
U

L.
6 M

IL VA
P

O
R

 B
A

R
R

IE
R

C
R

U
S

H
E

D
 R

O
C

K
 O

R
 S

A
N

D

E
LE

C
C

A
R

C
H

A
R

G
E

R

S
U

M
P

FLOOR TRUSSES

FLOOR TRUSSES

FLOOR TRUSSES

G
/R

M
W

9'-6"
C

E
ILIN

G

8'-6"
C

E
ILIN

G
8' C

E
ILIN

G

B
.I.

C
A

B
B

.I.
C

A
B

36" G
A

S
 FP

PA
N

TR
Y

TV
A

B
O

V
E

M
IN

I-S
P

LIT A
/C

 U
N

IT
TV

A
/C

 U
N

ITS

D
W

36"
R

A
N

G
E

8'-6"
C

E
ILIN

G

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
1

M
ain Level P

lan
0

2'
4'

8'

32



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
1.03

Second Level Plan

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

DN

UP

W
-11

W
-11

W
-13

W
-11

W
-10

W
-10

6'-8"
3'-0"

W
-19

W
-19

W
-19

W-20W-20

W
-19

W
-19

W
-19

6'-8"
2'-8"

6'-8"
3'-0"

6'-8"
2'-8"

6'-8"
2'-6"

6'-8"
3'-0"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-4"

W
-18

W
-18

6'-8"
4'-8"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-8"

W-16

6'-8"
2'-4"

W
-17

6'-8"
2'-6"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
2'-6"

W
D

1
A

3.01
1

A
3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

2.01
4

A
2.01

3
A

2.01

1
A

2.01

1'-6"
19'-2"

26'-0"
2'-0"

6'-1"
13'-11"

7'-8 1/2" 3'-4 1/2" 3'-8 1/2" 3'-10 1/2" 5'-5"

3'-7 1/2"
5'-9 1/2"

4'-6 1/2"
10 3/4"

10'-9 1/4"
4'-1"

3'-10"

5'-4 3/4"
6'-1"

7'-8 1/2" 13'-0"3'-4 1/2"

3'-11"
1'-11"

4'-6 1/2"
7'-6"

8'-2 1/2"
6'-5"

3'-7 1/2"

19'-1 1/2"
26'-0"

2'-0"
20'-0 1/2"

6'-3 3/8" 4'-10"

1'-8" 4'-4 1/2" 3'-8" 5'-1"
2'-4 1/2"

5'-6 1/2"

5'-4 3/4"
13'-3 1/4"

8'-10 1/2"

5'-5 1/2" 5'-5 1/2" 5'-8"6'-1 1/2"

67'-2"

12'-11"
1'-6"

6'-0"
1'-6"

2'-2"

24'-1"

R
E

FE
R

 TO
 E

LE
VATO

R
S

H
O

P D
R

AW
IN

G
S

IN
D

IC
ATE

S
S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E

 B
E

LO
W

4:12

4:12

6:12

4:12

O
P

E
N

 R
A

IL
H

A
LLW

AY

ELEVATO
R

C
LO

. (LO
W

)

B
ATH

B
ED

R
O

O
M

 #2

B
ED

R
O

O
M

 #3

B
ATH

LIN
E

N
 (LO

W
)

O
P

E
N

 TO
B

E
LO

W

LIN
E

N

INT.
WINDOW

PR
IM

A
RY

SU
ITE

PR
IM

A
RY

B
ATH

PR
IM

A
RY

C
LO

SET 1

8' C
E

ILIN
G

W
.C

.

PR
IM

A
RY

C
LO

SET 2

SA
U

N
A

S
LO

P
E

D
C

E
ILIN

G

BENCH

O
N

 R
IS

E
R

S

C
LO

SET

C
LO

SET
D

R
E

S
S

E
R

D
R

E
S

S
E

R

LIN
.

FLO
O

R
 JO

IS
TS

FLOOR JOISTS

FLOOR JOISTS

W-15

W-14

W-14

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
1

S
econd Level P

lan
0

2'
4'

8'

33



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
1.04

A
ttic Plan

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

DN

W-22 W-22W-22

W
-21

6'-8"
3'-0"

6'-8"
2'-6"

4'-0"
2'-8"

W
-25

W
-25

W
-23

6'-8"
2'-8"

6'-8"
2'-4"

6'-8"
4'-0"

6'-8"
4'-0"

W
-24

W
-24

W
-24

1
A

3.01
1

A
3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

2.01
4

A
2.01

3
A

2.01

1
A

2.01

19'-2"
28'-0"

2'-0"
20'-0"

22'-8 1/2"

39'-2"

5'-7 1/2"
3'-9 1/2"

1'-0"

10'-0 1/2"
6'-7 1/4"

4'-4 5/8" 3'-4 1/2" 3'-8 1/2" 3'-10 1/2"

3'-9 1/2"3'-11"

7'-8 1/2"

1'-8"

6'-0 1/2"6'-0 1/2" 12'-0"

24'-1"

3'-6"
11'-4"

RAFTERS

RAFTERS

R
A

FTE
R

S

R
A

FTE
R

S

RAFTERS

R
A

FTE
R

S

O
FFIC

E
0' S.L.

0' S.L.

0' S
.L.

H
ATC

H
E

D
 A

R
E

A
S

IN
D

IC
ATE

H
E

A
D

 R
O

O
M

B
E

LO
W

 6'-8"

B
ATH

B
ED

R
O

O
M

 #4

M
EC

H

4'-2" K
N

E
E

 W
A

LL
BENCH

B.I. CAB

DESK

0" S.L.

R
ID

G
E

 @
 5'-2"

0" S.L.

TV

0" S
.L.0" S

.L.

ATTIC
LO

FT
(VA

U
LTE

D
)

FU
R

N
A

C
E

8' C
E

ILIN
G

8' C
E

ILIN
G

B
.I. C

A
B

B.I. CAB

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
1

A
ttic P

lan
0

2'
4'

8'

34



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
1.05

R
oof Plan

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

R
O

O
F PLA

N
 N

O
TES

1.  
A

t nom
inally flat roof-to-w

all conditions, adhere E
P

D
M

 to w
all

 
sheathing and extend up w

all 2'-0" beneath siding.
2. 

P
enetrations to be flashed per m

anufacturer requirem
ents.

3. 
Finish of flashing and drop edge to be determ

ined at tim
e of

 
installation.

4. 
R

oof shingle m
aterial and exposure to be determ

ined at tim
e of

 
installation. 

5. 
G

utter locations and selections to be determ
ined at tim

e of
 

installation.

R
O

O
F A

R
EA

Top Surface
R

oof - A
sphalt

A
rea

2,731

1
A

3.01
1

A
3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

3.01

2
A

2.01
4

A
2.01

3
A

2.01

1
A

2.01

12:1212:12

12:12

12:12
12:12

3:12

6:12

6:12

4:12

6:12

4:12

4:12

6:12

6:12

6:12

12:12
12:12

12:1212:12

6:12

LIN
E

 IN
D

IC
ATE

S
 S

TR
U

C
TU

R
E

 B
E

LO
W

6:12

N

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
2

R
oof P

lan
0

2'
4'

8'

35



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
2.01

Exterior Elevation &
 B

uilding H
eight

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

-4'-10 3/4"
-1 Low

er Level

±0"
1 M

ain Level

+11'-1 3/4"
2 S

econd Level

+20'-3 1/2"
3 A

ttic

33'-11"
31'-0"

28'-7"

A
S

P
H

A
LT S

H
IN

G
LE

S

C
LA

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

S

6" LA
P S

ID
IN

G
, PA

IN
TE

D

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

A
L B

R
A

C
K

E
T,

PA
IN

TE
D

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

A
L B

R
A

C
K

E
T,

PA
IN

TE
D

G
R

A
N

ITE
 PATIO

 S
TO

N
E

S

FU
LL LIM

E
S

TO
N

E
 V

E
N

E
E

R

LO
W

E
S

T A
LLO

W
A

B
LE

 FLO
O

R
 = 933.0

O
H

W
L = 929.4

P
O

IN
T A

B
O

V
E

 H
IG

H
E

S
T W

A
LL O

F S
H

E
D

 R
O

O
F

AV
E

R
A

G
E

 TA
LLE

S
T G

A
B

LE

H
IG

H
E

S
T G

A
B

LE

AV
E

R
A

G
E

 G
R

A
D

E
 = 935.0

C
E

D
A

R
 S

H
IN

G
LE

 S
ID

IN
G

,
S

TA
IN

E
D

12
12

12
3

12
6

Job Address _______________________________________________ 

Per M
ound City Code, Section 129-2, building height and building line are defined as follow

s: 

Building Height  The vertical distance to be m
easured from

 the average grade of a building line 
to the top, to the cornice of a flat roof, to the deck line of a m

ansard roof, to a point on the roof 
directly above the highest  w

all of a shed roof, to the upperm
ost point on a round or other arch 

type roof, to the m
ean distance of the highest gable on a pitched roof. 

Building Line  A line parallel to the street right-of-w
ay or the ordinary high w

ater level at any 
story level of a building and representing the m

inim
um

 distance w
hich all or any part of the 

building is set back from
 said right-of-w

ay line or ordinary high w
ater leve l. 

CO
M

PLETE TH
E FO

LLO
W

IN
G

 

1.
Describe the type of roof style proposed (i.e., pitched, flat, shed roof, etc.)

__________________________________________________

2.
Provide the average grade elevation of the building line facing the street:

_________________ based on proposed grades referenced on subm
itted survey.

3.
Provide the average grade elevation of the building line facing the rear of the lot or

lake:

_________________ based on proposed grades referenced on subm
itted survey.

4.
Provide the average grade elevation of the building line(s): ____________________

5.
Provide the height of the proposed structure as m

easured from
 the low

est grade

elevation to highest point of structure: _______________________.

6.
Provide the proposed height of the structure based on the definition of building

height referenced above: _______________________

7.
Attach diagram

 - Graphic docum
entation, usually an elevation draw

ing, m
ust be

provided to confirm
 that the proposed height of the new

 structure, based on the
Zoning O

rdinance definition, m
eets the height regulations of the applicable zoning

district.  Graphics docum
ent m

ust be scaled to allow
 for checking by staff.

BU
ILDIN

G
 HEIG

HT CALCU
LATIO

N
 

HO
W

-TO
 FO

RM

2971 C
am

bridge Lane

P
ITC

H
E

D
 &

 S
H

E
D

935.6

934.4
935

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
1

N
orth E

levation &
 B

uilding H
eight A

nalysis
0

2'
4'

8'

36



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
2.02

Exterior Elevations

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

-4'-10 3/4"
-1 Low

er Level

±0"
1 M

ain Level

+11'-1 3/4"
2 S

econd Level

+20'-3 1/2"
3 A

ttic

12
12

12
6

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
1

S
outh E

levation
0

2'
4'

8'

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
2

E
ast E

levation
0

2'
4'

8'
S

C
A

LE
: 1/4"   =    1'-0"

3
W

est E
levation

0
2'

4'
8'

37



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
3.01

B
uilding Sections

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

-4'-10 3/4"
-1 Low

er Level
-4'-10 3/4"
-1 Low

er Level

±0"
1 M

ain Level
±0"
1 M

ain Level

+11'-1 3/4"
2 S

econd Level
+11'-1 3/4"
2 S

econd Level

+20'-3 1/2"
3 A

ttic
+20'-3 1/2"
3 A

ttic

1'-0"
4'-0"

1'-0 5/8"
8'-1 1/8"

1'-0 5/8"

7'-11 3/8"

9 1/2"

10'-1 1/8"

2'-0 3/4"
8'-1 1/8"

1'-0 5/8"

10'-3 1/4"

1'-2 1/4"
1'-0"

8'-1 1/8"

2'-2 1/4"

31'-9 1/2"

G
R

A
D

E
 = 934.5

LO
W

E
S

T A
LLO

W
A

B
LE

 FLO
O

R
 = 933.0

FFE
 = 936.92

O
H

W
L = 929.4

24" FLO
O

R
 TR

U
S

S
E

S

FLO
O

R
 TR

U
S

S
E

S

I-JO
IS

TS

I-JO
IS

T R
A

FTE
R

S

E
LE

VATO
R

P
IT

FLO
O

R
 TR

U
S

S
E

S
U

N
D

E
R

-FR
A

M
IN

G

I-JO
IS

TS

U
N

D
E

R
-FR

A
M

IN
G

H
A

N
D

-FR
A

M
E

D
R

A
FTE

R
S

 &
C

E
ILIN

G
 JO

IS
TS

S
LA

B
 = 934.73

TO
W

 = 935.73

S
LA

B
 = 935.73

O
FFIC

E

W
.C

.
SA

U
N

A

K
ITC

H
EN

PO
W

D
ER

STA
IR

W
AY

LO
FT

B
ED

R
O

O
M

 #2

B
ED

R
O

O
M

 #4

SH
O

W
ER

-4'-10 3/4"
-1 Low

er Level

±0"
1 M

ain Level

+11'-1 3/4"
2 S

econd Level

+20'-3 1/2"
3 A

ttic

11'-1 3/4" 9'-1 3/4" 7'-10 7/8" 2'-11 3/8"
1'-0"

4'-0"
1'-2 1/4"

31'-1 3/4"

7'-11 3/4"

S
TO

N
E

24" FLO
O

R
 TR

U
S

S
E

S

FLO
O

R
 TR

U
S

S
E

S

I-JO
IS

TS

I-JO
IS

T R
A

FTE
R

S

U
N

D
E

R
-FR

A
M

IN
G

FILL

K
ITC

H
EN

P. C
LO

SET

B
ED

R
O

O
M

#4

PATIO

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
1

B
uilding S

ection A
0

2'
4'

8'

S
C

A
LE

: 1/4"   =    1'-0"
2

B
uilding S

ection B
0

2'
4'

8'

38



ISSU
E

D
ATE

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

E01
10/15/25

Subm
ission - Expansion

Perm
it

R
EV

D
ESC

R
IPTIO

N

A
ll ideas, designs, plans and specifications are

the property of The Landschute G
roup, Inc.  This

copyrighted plan is an instrum
ent of service to

be used only by Landschute as it constructs the
project for its client. A

ny other use is
unauthorized and strictly prohibited (w

ithout
Landschute’s express w

ritten perm
ission) and

subject to copyright protection under S
ection

102 of the C
opyright A

ct, 17 U
.S

.C
., as

am
ended D

ecem
ber 1, 1990, know

n as the
A

rchitectural W
orks C

opyright P
rotection A

ct of
1990. P

rotection includes but is not lim
ited to

overall form
 as w

ell as the arrangem
ent of

spaces and details of the design.  U
nder such

protection, unauthorized use of these plans, or
w

orks resulting from
 these plans,  can result in

the term
ination and loss of such construction as

w
ell as fines up to $100,000 per offense.

A
6.01

W
indow

 &
 D

oor Schedules

S
H

E
E

T N
A

M
E

S
C

A
LE

 A
S

 IN
D

IC
ATE

D

202 W
ater S

t. #202
E

xcelsior, M
N

 55331
(952) 470-7416

B
uilder License: B

C
002303

©
 2025

A
R

C
H

ITEC
T &

 B
U

ILD
ER

C
O

PYR
IG

H
T N

O
TIC

E

PR
O

JEC
T

C
U

R
R

EN
T R

EVISIO
N

S

 ISSU
E H

ISTO
RY

PR
IN

TED
 D

ATE: 10/15/25

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

LH K
EN

N
Y

R
ESID

EN
C

E

PR
O

JEC
T A

D
D

R
ESS

2971 C
am

bridge Lane
M

ound, M
N

 55364

C
ottage R

ebuild

C
LIEN

T N
A

M
E

Tim
 &

 Joan K
enny

W
IN

D
O

W
 SC

H
ED

U
LE

ID

W
-01

W
-02

W
-03

W
-03

W
-04

W
-05

W
-06

W
-07

W
-08

W
-09

W
-10

W
-11

W
-13

W
-14

W
-15

W
-16

W
-17

W
-18

W
-19

W
-19

W
-20

W
-21

W
-22

W
-23

W
-24

W
-25

Q
ty.

11132321122312111233213132

Location
R

ough O
pening

2'-6"×3'-0"

3'-1"×5'-9"

2'-5"×3'-3 5/8"

3'-1"×5'-9"

3'-1"×5'-9"

2'-11"×6'-4 1/2"

2'-6"×3'-3"

4'-0"×4'-7"

2'-5"×3'-3 5/8"

2'-9"×4'-1"

5'-0"×4'-4"

2'-7"×4'-4 1/2"

3'-1"×5'-4 1/2"

1'-10"×5'-4 1/2"

5'-0"×5'-4 1/2"

4'-4"×4'-1"

2'-7"×2'-7"

2'-7"×4'-4 1/2"

3'-1"×5'-1"

3'-1"×5'-4 1/2"

3'-1"×4'-1"

5'-0 1/2"×4'-0"

2'-7"×4'-4 1/2"

2'-7"×2'-7"

3'-1"×5'-4 1/2"

3'-1"×3'-4"

H
ead

H
eight to
H

om
e

S
tory

8'-1"

8'-1"

6'-11 1/2"

8'-1"

8'-1"

8'-1"

8'-1"

8'-1"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 3/16"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-0"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-0"

D
etails

Type

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

Interior
Finish

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

---

R
em

arks
View

 from
 O

pening
S

ide

W
IN

D
O

W
 N

O
TES

1. 
W

indow
 sizes indicate rough opening dim

ensions (size rough
 

openings to allow
 for tapered pan flashing per m

anufacturer
 

requirem
ents).

2. 
R

efer to exterior door heights and align top of w
indow

s
 

accordingly w
ith doors of nom

inally equivalent head heights.
3. 

Verify jam
b depths.

4. 
Interior of w

indow
s to be prim

ed and painted on site.
5. 

W
indow

 grids to be sim
ulated divided lites w

ith spacer bars
 

(grid pattern per elevations).
6. 

H
ardw

are finish to be selected by client.
7. 

W
indow

 treatm
ents to be designed and provided by others.

8. 
S

upplier to confirm
 all w

indow
s m

eet tem
pered glazing

 
requirem

ents, egress requirem
ents, and fall protection

 
requirem

ents per M
S

R
C

.   

D
O

O
R

 N
O

TES
1. 

D
oor sizes indicate nom

inal dim
ensions. S

ize rough openings
 

per m
anufacturer requirem

ents.
2. 

A
ll exterior doors to be set on 3/4" board.

3. 
S

upplier to confirm
 all doors m

eet tem
pered glazing

 
requirem

ents per M
S

R
C

.
4. 

D
oor and hardw

are m
aterials and finishes to be selected by

 
client

EXTER
IO

R
 D

O
O

R
 SC

H
ED

U
LE

IDA

D
-02

D
-02

D
-02

D
-02

D
-02

D
-04

D
-04

Q
ty.

11111211

N
om

inal W
 x

H
 S

ize

6'-0"×8'-0"

2'-4"×6'-8"

3'-0"×6'-8"

4'-0"×6'-8"

5'-0"×6'-8"

2'-8"×6'-8"

2'-8"×8'-1"

3'-0"×6'-8"

View
 from

 O
pening

S
ide

2D
 P

lan P
review

R
em

arks

IN
TER

IO
R

 D
O

O
R

 SC
H

ED
U

LE

IDA

D
-01

D
-02

D
-02

D
-02

D
-02

D
-02

D
-03

D
-03

D
-04

D
-04

D
-04

D
-04

Q
ty.

1711457121222

N
om

inal W
 x

H
 S

ize

2'-6"×6'-8"

2'-4"×6'-8"

2'-6"×6'-8"

2'-8"×4'-0"

3'-0"×6'-8"

2'-4"×6'-8"

2'-8"×6'-8"

3'-0"×6'-8"

2'-6"×6'-8"

4'-8"×6'-8"

2'-4"×6'-8"

3'-0"×6'-8"

4'-0"×6'-8"

View
 from

 O
pening

S
ide

2D
 P

lan P
review

R
em

arks

39



40



41



42



43


	PC meeting for November 18 2025 special rescheduled meeting agenda
	Nov 18 special rescheduled PC meeting no agenda cover
	2025-09-02 PC Meeting Minutes for Nov 18 PC review and action
	PR for 5459 Bartlett Blvd Friday FINAL
	Staff recommends Planning Commission recommend approval of the variance based on the following findings of fact:
	In the event a recommendation for the variance is received from the Planning Commission at its November 18th meeting, the application will be forwarded to the City Council for consideration at an upcoming meeting with tentative dates of Tues., Novembe...

	5459 Background
	Variance for 5459 Bartlett Blvd for Nov 18 PC
	8362-CERT-10-06-25-11x17 for 5459 Bartlett Boulevard
	5459 Bartlett Revised Deck Variance Set (39.89%Hardcover) 10-15-2025 for Nov 18 PC

	2971 Cambridge Lane Expansion PC Nov 18 Thurs FRIDAY
	In the event a recommendation is received from the Planning Commission, it is anticipated that the expansion permit request will be considered by the City Council at its December 9, 2025 meeting at 6:00 p.m.

	2971 Cambridge Lane Background
	EP Application for 2971 Cambridge for Nov 18 PC
	2871 Cambridge Lane Ex and Proposed Survey
	2971 Cambridge Lane Plans

	Exterior Storage on Nov 18 PC




